
 
429 

 

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK 
 

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE PANEL 
 

Minutes from the Meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel held on 
Monday, 9th February, 2026 at 4.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, 

Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ 
 

PRESENT: Councillor B Long (Chair), 
A Beales, S Bearshaw, J Bhondi, R Blunt, F Bone, S Collop, A Dickinson, 

B Jones, C Joyce, S Lintern, J Osborne, T Parish, S Ring, A Ryves, D Sayers 
and Mrs V Spikings 

 
PRESENT UNDER STANDING ORDER 34: Councillor T Parish, C Joyce and     

F Bone, D Sayers, A Ryves and S Collop (Teams) 
 
PRESENT AS INVITED: 
 
Councillor Kemp and Devulapalli 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDERS: 
 
Councillor S Ring, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Business 
Councillor A Beales, Leader of the Council,  
Councillor S Lintern, Culture and Events 
 
OFFICERS: 
 
Honor Howell, Assistant Director for Transformation and LGR 
Emma Hodds, Chief of Staff and Monitoring Officer 
Jason Birch, Assistant Director for Property 
 
 

CP86   APOLOGIES  
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Kirk.  
 

CP87   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no declarations of Interest. 
 

CP88   URGENT BUSINESS UNDER STANDING ORDER 7  
 

There was none. 
 

CP89   MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34  
 

Councillor Parish, Joyce, Collop, Sayers, Ryves and Bone were 
present under Standing Order 34. 



 
430 

 

 

CP90   CALL IN - ADOPTION OF PROPERTY DISPOSAL POLICY  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on YouTube.  
 
The Panel dealt with the call-in in accordance with Standing Order 
15.33. 
 
Submissions of Proposer and Supporters 
 
The Proposer of the call-in, Councillor Kemp, addressed the Panel 
about the call-in and why it should be upheld. She read out her 
statement as included in the agenda and commented the Cabinet 
recommendation reversed the recommendation put forward by the 
Regeneration and Development Panel. She highlighted to Members, 
part 5b, point 94 of the Constitution which outlined Senior Officers must 
keep Members informed of matters affecting their wards. She added 
Members form the Council and commented on the social value some 
properties hold and expressed her concern of some land being sold.  
 
The Chair invited the supporters of the call-in to address the Panel. 
Councillor Devulapalli and Ryves spoke as supports of the call-in. 
Councillor Devulapalli expressed her concern Ward Members would 
not be informed and commented on the broadness of the 
recommendation.  
 
Councillor Ryves highlighted his support for the call-in as the 
recommendation made by Cabinet undermined the decision made by 
the Regeneration and Development Panel. In addition, he commented 
it was counterproductive and questioned the benefit of the amendment.  
 
Response from Portfolio Holder and Officers 
 
The Chair invited the relevant Portfolio Holder, Councillor Ring, to 
address the Panel. Councillor Ring expressed his support for the call-in 
and commented the wording was rushed and agreed further wording 
needed to be considered by the Panel. He reminded Members sales of 
assets were required to go through Cabinet or Council in which 
Members had opportunity to input on decisions. He highlighted to 
Members the importance of Social Value to Cabinet when decisions 
were being made. 
 
The Assistant Director for Property echoed Councillor Ring comments  
 
Submissions from Members present under Standing Order 34 
 
The Chair invited Members present under Standing Order 34 to 
address the Panel. 
 

https://youtu.be/-hXM9U9uvAg?t=115


 
431 

 

Councillor Parish, as the Chair of Regeneration and Development 
Panel commented he did not appreciate the additional wording being 
added following the recommendation of the Panel and explained the 
caveat added by the Panel. He referred to section 8, paragraph 4 
which referred to social value and highlighted there was a discrepancy. 
He questioned commercial sensitivity in relation to asset disposal and 
commented assets under £250,000 were able to be sold by the 
Assistant Director for Property.  
 
The Chief of Staff and Monitoring Officer highlighted Officer Decision 
were also subject to the call-in process. She reminder Members had 
right of access but there were occasions which were commercially 
sensitive which not only related to price.  
 
Councillor Bone commented on the wording added by Cabinet and 
suggested this was removed but wording be added to include 
commercial sensitivity.    
 
Councillor Joyce highlighted the term commercially sensitive needed to 
be determined and commented Members held knowledge of their ward 
and therefore should be consulted on assets within their areas.  
 
Councillor Beales reminded Members there was no current asset 
disposal policy and therefore introducing this would strengthen 
Members rights. He referred to the constitution, Article 2, section 2.05 
to 2.06 which outlined Councillors must not give out information which 
was given to them in confidence to anyone not entitled to have it. He 
added wording needed to be added in relation to discretion being 
applied.   
 
Panel Debate 
 
The Chair invited the Panel to debate the call-in. 
 
Councillor Bearshaw commented the Panel and Cabinet Members 
were in agreement and proposed the call-in was upheld and a 
recommendation was formulated. Councillor Osborne seconded the 
proposal. The Panel agreed this unanimously.  
 
Councillor Osborne asked the Assistant Director for Property to outline 
the operational process in relation to the sale of assets.  
 
The Assistant Director for Property explained that asset disposal 
processes typically take at least six weeks, allowing sufficient time for 
consultation with ward members and parish councils. He noted that the 
process involves due diligence, market testing, and decision-making 
stages, during which confidentiality may be necessary, but consultation 
with relevant parties is standard practice. 
 
The Chief of Staff and Monitoring Officer explained introducing a 
property disposal policy was best practice and provided assurance 



 
432 

 

Officers would discuss with Ward Members at the best time during the 
process.   
 
In response to Councillor Jones the Assistant Director for Property 
explained there would be a consultation for community land. He 
commented the process included testing the market and there were 
occasions in which confidentially was relied on.  
 
Councillor Bearshaw commented on the practically of the process as 
the Parish Councils only met once a month. He proposed the meeting 
go into exempt session to assist with the debate.   
 
Councillor Bearshaw’s proposal was seconded by Councillor Spikings.  
 
The Chief of Staff and Monitoring Officer explained discussions were 
able to be had in the public meeting and provided clarification on 
commercial sensitivity. She reminded Members, the Portfolio Holder, 
Councillor Ring had agreed with the call-in and suggested the Panel  
discussed the additional wording to be removed. She highlighted the 
Constitution outlined and defined commercial sensitivity clearly.  
 
The Portfolio Holder, Councillor Ring agreed the additional wording be 
removed. 
 
Councillor Bhondi proposed the following wording to be added to 
section 10, governance arrangements and oversight; ‘During potential 
asset disposals portfolio holders, ward members, parish councils and 
other community representatives may have confidential / commercial 
information shared with them, it is important that the status of such 
documentation is respected and not shared wider.’ 
 
Councillor Jones seconded Councillor Bhondi’s proposal.  
 
Councillor Dickinson expressed her concern of potential conflicts of 
community groups which are not consultees and consultees such as 
parish councils and potential buyers of the asset as this provided 
advantages. She provided examples of local football clubs and other 
groups who could be potential buyers.  
 
The Chief of Staff and Monitoring Officer explained that the code of 
conduct and register of interests would address potential conflicts, 
especially if parish councils or community groups are potential buyers. 
She explained that officers would manage such situations on a case-
by-case basis, and the committee discussed the need to ensure 
transparency and fairness in these scenarios. 
 
In response to Councillor Kemp's query on consultations, the Chief of 
Staff and Monitoring Officer by stating that assets of community value 
are outside the scope of the current asset disposal policy and are 
managed under a separate policy framework. 
 



 
433 

 

The committee agreed to uphold the call-in and to formulate a counter 
recommendation with removal of the additional wording added and 
revised wording to ensure early and transparent consultation while 
respecting confidentiality.  
 
Councillor Bearshaw voted against the proposal.  
 
RESOLVED: The Panel voted to uphold the call-in and formulated an 
amendment to recommendation: 
 
Paragraph 3, section 9 to read: Potential disposals should be 
discussed with the portfolio holder, ward members, parish councils and 
any other community representatives, relevant to where the land 
property is located at an early stage.  
 
Paragraph 4, section 8 to read: They provide no real social value to the 
Borough Community at large whit it only provides a benefit that is 
disproportionate the opportunity cost of the capital tied up in the asset.  
 
To be added to section 10, governance arrangements and oversight: 
‘During potential asset disposals portfolio holders, ward members, 
parish councils and other community representatives may have 
confidential / commercial information shared with them, it is important 
that the status of such documentation is respected and not shared 
wider.’ 
 

CP91   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

The next meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel was scheduled 
to take place on 25th February 2026 at 4:30pm in the Council Chamber, 
Town Hall.  
 

 
The meeting closed at 5.28 pm 
 

 


